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FINANCE
Managing finances through 

expert accounting, 
processing and advice

PROPERTY ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

Managing property portfolios
to deliver efficient environments 

and cost savings

HUMAN 
RESOURCES

Taking care of people, pay, 
performance, recruitment 

and training

ISS
Information System Services 

Providing support for 
enterprise applications and 
ICT into client organisations 

PROCUREMENT
Sourcing goods and services to 

enable customers to get best value 
and make budgets go further 

GRANTS
Providing comprehensive 

administration for 
grant-giving operations

UK SBS 2014/15

HOW WE DO IT

UK SBS delivers shared business 
services to its owners: BIS and its 
partner organisations. We work 
behind the scenes, providing shared 
and specialist services to help our 
owners deliver their goals and drive 
greater saving and efficiencies to the 
benefit of UK taxpayers. 

614 full time
equivalent
employees

OUR VALUES

KEY SUCCESSES IN 2014/15

+ British Business Bank on board as new client

+ Grants delivered Peer Review Project successfully

+ Property service gained industry award 

+ Reduced budget deficit to break even

+ Maintained services in challenging times

+ Human Resources serviced 25,000 users

+ Information Systems Services serviced 2,000 customers

CUMULATIVE SAVINGS/BENEFITS 

£1.2m
Finance generated 
savings

£257m
Procurement benefits 
since 2008

£39m
Procurement 
delivered benefits

One

Working together, succeeding together, 
elebrating together. It’s what makes UK SBS  
a great place to work and it’s how we produce 
impressive results for our customers.

Perform as a team

Always respect

Consider customers first

Take the initiative

TEAM
Customers

We exist to make our customers’ lives easier. 
Full stop. By truly understanding what they 
need we can find new and better ways to  
help them.

Perform as a team

Always respect

Consider customers first

Take the initiative

FIRST
As a company we’re passionate about  
doing things better, faster, more effectively.  
It’s important we all feel inspired to  
do the same.

Perform as a team

Always respect

Consider customers first

Take the initiative

Take

PRIDE
Have

It’s important to respect the contribution  
of everyone we work with. Applaud the  
integrity and honesty that runs through 
everything we do.

Perform as a team

Always respect

Consider customers first

Take the initiative

RESPECT

27%
Research Council 
annual charges

REDUCTION
£103m
Property Asset  
Management over 4 years 

SAVINGS

£40m
Completed BIS 
estates programme

SAVINGS
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This is the final Chairman’s Statement for 
the UK SBS Board in its current form and 
membership. By September 2015 it is planned 
that the current Board will be replaced as part 
of the next phase of BIS’s Shared Services 
2020 Strategy, which will take the company 
under much closer and direct BIS control as 
a prelude to transitioning its services to other 
providers. It is an opportune moment to reflect, 
on behalf of the Board, on what the Company 
has achieved overall, as well as to comment on 
the main themes of the financial year 2014/15.

Economy and efficiency in the 
public service
UK SBS (or RCUK Shared Services Centre, as it started life in 
2007) has been an attempt to resolve a persistent problem in 
the UK’s public services. That is, how can public services be 
as, or more, efficient and economical as comparable private 
sector services whilst remaining part of the public service and 
thus entirely committed to its goals? Initially the company was 
created to provide shared back office services to the seven 
Research Councils by exploiting the power of an Oracle ERP 
system. But soon after the Company took full responsibility 
for that platform, in 2010, the demands of public expenditure 

reduction led BIS to adopt it as a potential vehicle for a much 
wider range of shared business services across BIS and all its 
Partner Organisations, and possibly for others. 

The headline achievements have been impressive. Most 
concretely, procurement benefits have been £257m, property 
savings £103m, and annual charges to Research Councils 
have reduced by 27% in the period 2011/12 to 2014/15. 
These are not just achievements of UK SBS, but of BIS, the 
Research Councils, and the other owners and customers of 
the company, because everyone had to play their part, and 
everyone also shared the pain of the changes which were 
needed to win them. There have also been weaknesses and 
shortcomings, and they have been shared too. But no one 
should underestimate the hard work and the struggles which 
people in many parts of the BIS family have gone through to 
try and deliver savings and major cost reductions, and to try 
and maintain and improve services.

In the event, the Company has turned out to be a transitional 
vehicle, rather than a model to be scaled and duplicated. It 
has certainly enabled the Research Councils to pool services 
and save money, and BIS to drive change and cost reduction. 
But the urgency of the circumstances in which it operated 
over the 
past five years meant that it could not be given the space and 
time to stabilise and improve its services sufficiently so as to fully 
secure the confidence and support of its customers. It has made 
a difference, and an important contribution, but it has not 
made the breakthrough that was hoped for. It will be important 
to learn the lessons as to why things turned out in that way.

2014/15
2014/15 has been a year of challenge, change and 
achievement for the Company. We reviewed our technology 
infrastructure in light of the Government’s ‘Cloud First’ 
policy and started the process of implementing our revised 
strategy; we worked with the Research Councils to transfer 
the Peer Review element of the grants service to them as 
part of their Research Funding Programme and we led a 
major project which intended to move our transactional 
services and customers to Shared Services Connected Ltd 
(SSCL) as part of the Government’s Next Generation Shared 
Services strategy. We stabilised and improved services, 
brought the procurement benefits total since 2008 up to 
£257m and delivered £103m savings over 4 years through 

estates and lease rationalisation. In 2014 alone, the grants 
service supported the commitment of £2,469m against 
4,341 grant offers whilst £2,119m was paid to research 
organisations. Alongside all of these achievements we also 
successfully addressed a significant budget reduction which, 
sadly, required the loss of a quarter of our staff through two 
voluntary exit programmes. 

Optimising our services
Our 2014/19 Business Plan was the foundation for activities in 
2014/15. The Company focused its attention on two priorities: 
to deliver quality services and provide a positive customer 
experience; and, to provide value for money through efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

The response of our people in particular to these collective 
challenges was impressive. We were able to close our budget 
deficit through a robust review of non-staff related spending, 
and making the difficult decision to reduce employee numbers 
through a programme of voluntary exits. Overall employee 
numbers reduced in-year by 26%. 

It is to the very great credit of UK SBS employees that they were 
able to maintain and improve services and manage customer 
expectations while also saying goodbye to valued friends and 
colleagues. Work continues in 2015/16 to embed changes to 
processes and team structures and at least to maintain the 
improvements achieved in 2014/15 and to continue to identify 
and address further areas for improvement where there are 
real benefits for customers, the Company and our shareholders.

Preparing for the future
At the start of 2014/15 there was the prospect of the bulk of 
our transactional services transferring to SSCL by the end of 
the financial year. But in March 2015, with the support and 
approval of all our shareholders, the contract with SSCL was 
terminated and the Company continues to provide all those 
services to existing customers. The BIS Shared Services 
2020 Review will now be the primary determinant of the way 
forward for the company over the next two-three years.

In late June 2015 the BIS Executive Board approved their 
BIS Shared Services 2020 Outline Business Case. This 
provides for the transition of services from the Company over 
the next three years as part of its broader strategy for BIS 
transformation and change. Part of this programme will be 

an early change of Board Directors to bring the Company 
under more direct BIS and owner control. The current UK SBS 
Board is wholly committed to ensure that there is an efficient 
and effective transition of Board governance and membership, 
and also that UK SBS services continue to improve 
throughout the brief remaining period of its stewardship.

It is now the right time to gear up for the significant challenges 
of change which the new Government has scoped for all 
Government Departments, and part of that means radical 
change for UK SBS. Whatever the ups and downs, no one 
should forget or diminish the huge effort and contribution 
made over the past five years by people at all levels across 
BIS, its Partner Organisations and UK SBS, to deliver the 
savings, wider benefits and the changes that were needed.

The journey so far has not always been smooth and there 
have been set backs from which we must all learn. What 
needed to be done was difficult, as well as relatively high risk. 
There was a need to achieve major savings in property and in 
procurement, to secure substantial standardisation and cost 
reduction in back office transactional services and also to 
cope with the many forces across Government and amongst 
BIS and its Partner Organisations, which inevitably, on 
occasions, pulled in different directions. The knowledge and 
experience gained from the successes as well as the setbacks 
stand the Company its owners, customers and employees in 
good stead for the next period of change.

The lasting impression of this difficult year has been the 
strength of spirit and determination UK SBS employees 
have shown. On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank 
all employees, past and present, for their hard work and 
commitment, and to thank the owners and customers for their 
continuing constructive support and goodwill. Together, we 
have proved ourselves to be a resilient and flexible partner 
of Government in tackling some major challenges within the 
public service. 

Dr Clive Grace O.B.E. 
Chair

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

C H A I R M A N ’ S  S TAT E M E N T
“The BIS Shared 
Services 2020 Review 
will now be the 
primary determinant 
of the way forward for 
the company over the 
next two-three years.”
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• Consolidate and improve existing services to  

current customers.

• Improve cost, efficiency and effectiveness to ensure  

value for money.

In so doing, the programme sought to ensure that we were 
delivering the level and quality of service our customers 
expected at an affordable cost. Our effectiveness and 
efficiency were analysed and improvement activities were 
taken forward both across the business and in dedicated 
areas where analysis indicated that priority action was required.

The ‘Fit for Future’ element considered future options for the 
Company following the anticipated transfer of transactional 
services to SSCL in spring 2015. In the event, the contract 
with SSCL was terminated and the Company continues to 
provide the full complement of services. 

The 2014/15 transformation programme delivered significant 
improvements and has made the Company stronger and 
leaner. As a consequence, the Company is better placed 
to deal with further change resulting from the BIS Shared 
Services 2020 Review. 

Arrangements with Shared Services 
Connected Ltd (SSCL)
Despite the best efforts of SSCL and UK SBS to agree the 
detail of services and transfer arrangements, both parties 
could not reach agreement on a beneficial way forward. As 
a consequence and with the approval of our shareholders 
and customers, the contract to move transactional finance, 
payroll and HR work to SSCL was terminated in March 2015. 
We therefore continue to provide our full range of services to 
our current customers, pending the implementation of the BIS 
Shared Services 2020 programme.

Strengthening our services
Despite the year’s challenges, our people pulled together, 
driving process efficiency and service delivery, and resolving 
underlying problems in our services. The priorities and 
achievements of our service teams were as follows:

Human Resources
Through a robust improvement plan, the team 
stabilised its services and service request 
turnaround times while also tackling longstanding 

backlogs. The team’s actions combined process efficiencies, 
system improvements and skills development, including 
establishing best practice for service requests; end-to-end 
process reviews with desk notes; a cross-skilling strategy; 
workflow controls and visual management boards.

Finance
The team continued improving its services with a 
number of end-to-end process reviews. They 
focused on maximising the electronic processes 

wherever possible including increasing the use of e-invoicing. 
Two customer open days were held to raise awareness of the 
service improvements and facilitate good partnership working 
with customers. These were very well received and customers 
have continued to provide positive feedback on the service.

S T R AT E G I C  R E P O R T

STRATEGIC REPORT
Summary
While 2014/15 presented many challenges 
and uncertainties, our purpose remains the 
same: to be an instrument for integrating and 
improving business services for our customers 
and owners. We provide our customers with 
efficient and effective services that enable 
them to focus on their core activities.

Meeting customers’ future needs
We recognise that our customers and owners face significant 
on-going expenditure restraints and reductions and we 
can support them through continued improvements to the 
efficiency and effectiveness of our services. There are likely 
to be some departures from our services due to restructuring 
activities by some of our customers. However, we can see 
opportunities arising from work commissioned by BIS, 
wider Government strategy developments and subsequent 
emerging themes. These include developments in the 
property field; digital opportunities; and evolving procurement 
and transactional service options.

Our primary focus will continue to be on our current owners 
and customers and wider developments will be guided by our 
owners and the BIS Shared Services 2020 Review. 

Shaping the business 2015/16
As the full effect of the 2014/15 budget reductions are 
realised, our shape in 2015/16 will be similar to that in 2014/15 
but significantly smaller in terms of both turnover and staffing. 
The challenging environment and potential for change arising 
from the BIS Shared Services 2020 Review may mean that 
we will need to make some fundamental changes to the way 
we organise, structure and govern ourselves in the future. 
The new European legal framework for public procurement 
has necessitated an adjustment to current governance 
arrangements which will take effect in summer 2015 following 
unanimous shareholder approval. Designs for our future delivery 
model are commencing for implementation in the autumn 2015.

Our organisational objectives will be delivered through planned 
activities and cross-service initiatives within our six services. 
A primary focus will remain on maintaining service, improving 
effectiveness and efficiency where it is necessary to do so 
across all services lines and corporate enabling functions.

Focusing on our priorities
Now that we have clarity about the BIS Shared Services 2020 
review and the future shape of our business our attention will 
be focused on two priorities in 2015/16:

• To continue improving our core services and reducing 

cost across all lines of our business.

• To help our owners and customers practically shape their 

medium-term business service needs and evaluate how 

best to respond to those needs.

Our financial results
You can find the results for the year on page 36 of the financial 
statements. UK SBS does not operate to make a profit. 
Instead, it recovers full costs by setting service charges such 
that it breaks even before depreciation, amortisation and 
the release of deferred income that covers certain elements 
of depreciation. In 2014/15 the Company recorded a small 
surplus of £0.4m before depreciation, amortisation and the 
release of deferred income. The recorded loss for the year was 
£7.4m after including £9.6m cost of depreciation and amortisation.

The net assets total as at 31 March 2015 was £19.9m 
(2014/15 £27.4m), as detailed on page 37 of the financial 
statements. The Company has retained losses that 
approximately equal the depreciation and amortisation that 
has been charged to date.

Transforming UK SBS
In light of the challenges and changes facing UK SBS in 
2014/15, we launched a comprehensive transformation 
programme that was firmly focused on ensuring both that the 
Company was ‘Fit for Purpose’ and ‘Fit for Future’. The ‘Fit for 
Purpose’ dimension was centred on progressing the top two 
priorities in the 2014/19 Business Plan:

“Despite the year’s 
challenges, our people 
pulled together, driving 
process efficiency and 
service delivery, and 
resolving underlying 
problems in our 
services.”

“Delivered 27% 
reduction in Annual 
Charges to Research 
Councils for back 
office services 
between 2011/12 
and 2014/15”
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S T R AT E G I C  R E P O R T

Grants
A focus for the Grants service has been to work 
collaboratively with the Research Councils to 
transfer responsibility for the peer review element of 

the service to their retained teams. This change was part of a 
significant Research Funding Programme and will support 
Research Councils develop closer relationships with the wider 
research community. At the same time as dealing with many 
complex technical challenges relating to the transfer, the 
UK SBS Grants team continued not only to meet performance 
targets, but also reduced errors and improved efficiency. The 
Grants team has restructured to reflect both staff reductions 
following the voluntary exit programme and the new process 
arrangements. The Company continues to liaise closely with 
Research Councils, BIS and the Cabinet Office as the 
Government’s Grants Efficiency Programme develops.

Procurement
The year proved challenging for the Procurement 
service. It became clear that we would not realise 
our ambition to grow our Procurement business and 

that we needed to focus attention on rebuilding its operational 
foundations. Our own analysis and internal audit reviews have 
ensured that our attention has been targeted on the key areas 
including team restructure and the introduction of a number of 
rigorous controls. This has led to a decreasing risk profile, 
which will continue to reduce as improvements and change 
are embedded. A sub-committee of the Board was 
established in autumn 2014 to support and guide the team. 

Information Systems Services
The ISS team implemented a Service Integration 
and Management (SIaM) service, enabling it to 
better manage multi-sourced services and 

operations. The approach will improve the services we use 
and provide for our customers. Work has also begun to 
streamline our IT infrastructure, for example, moving the 
Grants system to a cloud environment on time and within 
budget. Additionally, the team has established options which 
will provide short-term stability and support for the Oracle 
12.0.6 platform but a more significant overhaul of 12.0.6  
is required. 

Property Asset Management
During the year, an enhanced team structure was 
established to deliver services to customers. A three 
year property rationalisation programme for BIS was 

successfully concluded and it has resulted in cumulative 
savings of £103m over the Comprehensive Spending Review 
period. As part of this programme the PAM team established 
a leasehold liability vehicle which transferred risk out of the 
public sector while making cost savings of an estimated 
£10m. This pioneering work was recognised by the property 
industry with an award for young leadership for one member 
of the team and a nomination for Corporate Real Estate 
Executive of the year.

Managing risks and uncertainties
In October 2014, we performed an internal audit of our Risk 
Management Framework. The review revealed that, while 
our process and framework are well designed, they were 
not operating effectively. We undertook considerable work 
articulating, reporting and responding to the audit findings. 
As a result of this effort, the Audit Committee is content that 
at Corporate level, risk is being managed actively. Efforts 
continue to ensure that equivalent rigour is being is being 
applied consistently within each Directorate. A follow up audit 
is planned for early 2015/16. For more information, see the 
Annual Governance Statement on pages 20 to 27.

Developing our operations
The Government’s openness and transparency agenda seeks 
to make more data freely available, save tax payers’ money, 
strengthen people’s trust in government, and encourage 
greater public participation in decisions. As an arms’ length 
body of Government, UK SBS is committed to this agenda, 
publishing a wealth of data on our website at www.uksbs.co.uk 
and the Government’s public data website at www.data.gov.uk

We appointed the Government Internal Audit Agency (GIAA) 
as our internal auditors for 2014/15 and implemented a 
quarterly assurance process to provide our customers with 
information about our audit activity, audit outcomes and 
actions, risk management and internal controls. Customer 
Accounting Officers have indicated that they welcome the level 
of detail that is being provided.

Following a comprehensive review, the Board approved 
an updated Corporate Scheme of Delegation. This is a 
valuable working document for the Board and Executives 
that summarises the authority vested in our Board by our 
Shareholders and from the Board to the Chief Executive and 
also reflects the financial authority and limitations placed on 
the Chief Executive as Accounting Officer by BIS. 

The Board commissioned an independent review of its 
conduct and operation in November 2014. The resultant 
report concluded that the Board is operating effectively and 
appropriately while making some modest recommendations 
for improvements which are being taken forward. A further 
review of wider governance procedures, particularly in relation 
to new business opportunities was commissioned through 
GIAA. In response, we have taken action to review, update 
and implement processes and guidance to better support 
decision making should new business opportunities arise. 

Voluntary exits
Our budget challenges in 2014/15 were significant and 
required us to address non-staff costs and offer a two-phased 
voluntary exit scheme which resulted in a 21% reduction in 
staff numbers alone. The full in-year reduction in staff was 
26%, with 5% relating to the cessation of transition activities 
and the corresponding release of the team. The requirement 
to make savings was such that in some cases those leaving 
the business under the voluntary exit scheme did so before 
planned service improvements and efficiencies were able to 
be implemented. This meant not only that colleagues had to 
say goodbye to valued colleagues, but also that the business 
was relying heavily on them to pick up additional workload. 
The commitment and resilience shown by employees has 
been striking, and that we have been able to maintain, improve 
and recalibrate services during this time is a real tribute to our 
people. It is recognised and appreciated by both the Board 
and our clients. 

In addition to the voluntary staff exits, the Board and Executive 
team has also experienced some significant change over the 
last 12 months. Non-Executive Directors Simon Newton and 
Tim Knighton stepped down due to conflicts of interests as 
they started new substantive roles, and we welcomed Carol 
Bernstein. With our services improving and budget deficit 
reducing significantly, our Chief Executive Officer, Jonathan 
Preece, decided to return to the private sector after three 
years with the Company. We also said farewell to Ruth 

 
Elliot, Finance Director, who returned to BIS following a very 
fruitful period with the Company, and Nicola Dunne, Chief 
Procurement Officer and Assistant CEO who was one of 
the very first people recruited by the Company in 2008. We 
welcomed Anita Peters as Finance Director on secondment 
from BIS and Gavin Foxall as Acting Chief Procurement Officer.

In January 2015, Joanna Brigham, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer, stepped up as Acting CEO for three very productive 
months pending the arrival of the interim CEO, Ed Lester In 
March 2015. Ed had been a Non-Executive Director on the 
UK SBS Board since 2013. He brings substantial experience 
as a CEO in the public and private sectors and deep 
knowledge of UK SBS, BIS and its Partner Organisations. 
This is an interim appointment, pending the appointment of a 
permanent CEO in light of the requirements emerging from the 
BIS Shared Services Review 2020.

Providing effective services
The Government Internal Audit Agency (GIAA) undertook 17 
audits of service and corporate activities in 2014/15, including 
Payroll, IT Governance and Management, Risk Management, 
Records Management, Finance Processes and Procurement. 
As a result of this audit activity, a ‘Limited’ overall assurance 
rating for the year was provided and within which a ‘Moderate’ 
assurance rating was given for customer-facing operations; a 
‘Limited’ assurance rating was given for internal operations; 
and an ‘Unsatisfactory’ assurance rating was given for our 
Procurement service. We have taken audit recommendations 
on board, many had been addressed by the end of the 
financial year and the 2015/16 audit plan has been designed 
to include early review of areas requiring follow up.

“Established a  
leasehold liability 
vehicle which 
transferred risk out of 
the public sector while 
making cost savings of 
an estimated £10m.”
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S T R AT E G I C  R E P O R T

Recognising the commitment of 
our people
Amid many challenges, the resilience of our people has shone 
through. The Institute of Customer Service (ICS) granted 
UK SBS ‘Approved Centre’ accreditation. This accreditation 
recognises that we operate a professional qualifications 
framework that meets ICS standards and quality assurance 
requirements. It also demonstrates our commitment to raising 
service standards by developing our people, not least through 
supporting them in gaining high-level customer-service skills. 
During the year, ten employees gained ICS qualifications with 
three of these employees achieving combined qualifications. 

In addition the company has been able to offer a small 
number of apprenticeships. Four Newport-based apprentices 
completed their NVQs in Business Administration in 2014/15. 

These customer service and business administration 
qualifications are valuable for the Company and provide our 
staff and young people at the start of their careers with highly 
transferable skills of real value within UK SBS and that can also 
act as stepping stones to further training and career choices.

Despite the challenging year, UK SBS employees have 
continued to give their time and energy to organising and 
participating in a number of national and local charity events, 
raising more than £2,400 in total. In October, over £600 was 
raised for Macmillan Cancer Support through a big coffee 
morning. In December, we raised over £1,000 for local 
charities Swindon Mind, Hartlepool Hospice and Tŷ Hafan, 
and national charity Save the Children. In March, nearly 100 
employees provided call centre services from our Swindon 
offices for Comic Relief for the third year running. Employees 
have also baked, run, swum, cycled, walked and set up dog 
shows. These are just some of the wide range of activities 
regularly undertaken by our employees to support charities 
and causes that are important to them. 

Diversity
As at the 31 March 2015, the numbers of males and females 
in the Company were as follows.

Males Females

Board 
(excluding the Chief Executive Officer)

2 4

Executive team 
(including the Chief Executive Officer)

4 3

Employees 250 364

Employee health

During 2014/15, the average working days lost at UK SBS 
through recorded sickness absence was 7.1 days per 
employee (2013/14 7.6 days).

Managing our footprint
UK SBS is committed to reducing the impact the organisation 
has on the environment and to continually improve our 
environmental performance as an integral part of our business 
strategy and operating methods by the following.

• Incorporating the consideration of environmental 

concerns and impacts in all decisions and activities.

• Complying with all relevant regulatory requirements, 

government policies and standards of good practice for 

environmental management.

• Promoting environmental awareness among Company 

staff and encouraging them to work in an environmentally 

responsible manner.

• Reducing waste through re-use and recycling all 

materials where possible.

• Purchasing recycled, recyclable or re-furbished products 

and materials where these alternatives are available, 

economical and suitable.

• Communicating environmental commitment to clients, 

customers and the public and encouraging them to  

support it.

• Promoting efficient use of materials and resources, 

particularly those that are non-renewable.

• Working with staff to reduce adverse environmental 

impacts associated with travel, including encouraging the 

use of more environmentally friendly forms of transport.

• Working with contractors to promote effective 

environmental supply management to support the 

Company’s policy to prevent pollution.

Focusing on the future
The year has seen UK SBS demonstrate great resilience, 
fortitude, and a determination to tackle challenges positively. 
Our owners and customers recognise these qualities, which 
we believe stands UK SBS in good stead for the future as 
the BIS Shared Services 2020 programme develops. With 
a continuing pressure on budgets, we recognise that the 
coming months will bring more changes and challenges. A 
clear focus on our 2015/16 Business Plan will help to ensure 
we deliver the best services we can and better understand 
and meet our customers’ needs.

Our key successes in 2014/15
• We addressed the forecasted budget deficit, reducing it 

from over £7 million to our break-even position.

• We maintained service to customers, despite staff 

reductions through voluntary exit.

• British Business Bank came on board as a new customer 

in the autumn.

• Property Asset Management established its service 

delivery model and completed its innovative programme 

of estate rationalisation for BIS, delivering in year savings 

of over £40 million and total savings of £103 million. The 

industry also recognised the team for its leadership and 

innovation, receiving awards from CoreNet.

• We implemented a programme to ensure our HR service 

achieved business-as-usual status.

• The Finance service generated £1.2 million savings 

through efficiencies gained by extending electronic 

invoicing and cross-site working. 

• The ISS service delivered significant savings and 

improved risk controls while providing desktop services 

to around 2,000 customers across two major Oracle 

platforms and a SIEBEL system.

• The Grants service worked with customers to smoothly 

transfer peer review support responsibility. At the 

same time, the team continued improving services and 

efficiency savings. 

• The Procurement service has delivered cashable and 

non-cashable benefits of £39 million. This represents 

almost 6% of spending under our management of  

£660 million.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ed Lester, Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 30 July 2015

“Amid many 
challenges, the 
resilience of our 
people has shone 
through.”
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Principal activity
UK Shared Business Services Ltd (UK SBS) is a company 
limited by shares. The Company’s principal activity is to 
‘improve the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of 
corporate services to UK public bodies and to help satisfy a 
UK Government mandate to reduce public expenditure and 
the cost of public services administration in the overall public 
interest and to improve public services more generally’.

The Board of Directors
The UK SBS Constitution provides that the Board of UK 
Shared Business Services Ltd comprises ten members; 
nine Non-Executive Directors (one of which is the Chair) and 
one Executive Director. At the end of 2014/15, the size of the 
Board had reduced to seven members: six Non-Executive 
Directors and one Executive Director. This was due to the 
resignation of two Non-Executives, the recruitment of one 
new Non-Executive (Carol Bernstein) and the appointment of 
one Non-Executive (Ed Lester) as the Interim Chief Executive 
Officer consequent upon the resignation of Jonathan Preece. 
The Board’s recommendation to operate with a reduced 
membership was in response to wider austerity measures 
undertaken by the Company and in anticipation of possible 
governance changes in 2015 arising from planned review and 
the wider BIS Shared Services 2020 strategy. The approach 
was supported by Shareholders. The directors who held office 
during the accounting period are detailed here:

Board Members Date Appointed Date Resigned

Chair

Dr Clive Grace O.B.E. 
(Non-Executive Director)

1 August 2012 In post

Executive Director

Jonathan Preece (CEO) 1 August 2012 31 Dec 2014

Joanna Brigham (Acting CEO) 1 January 2015 22 March 2015

Ed Lester (Interim CEO) 23 March 2015 In post

Non-Executive Directors

Carol Bernstein 23 October 2014 In post

Baroness Rennie Fritchie 1 August 2013 In post

Tim Knighton 1 August 2012 30 April 2014

Ed Lester* 1 August 2012 22 March 2015

Elizabeth McMahon 1 September 2013 In post

Simon Newton 1 August 2012 1 August 2014

Lesley Thompson 1 August 2012 In post

Nick Winterton 1 August 2012 In post

*Ed Lester was appointed by the Board as Interim Chief Executive Officer following 

 a recruitment process overseen by the Remuneration and Nominations Committee.

“Together, we have 
proved ourselves 
to be a resilient 
and flexible partner 
of Government in 
tackling some major 
challenges within 
the public service.”

 

Dr Clive Grace O.B.E.
Chair and Non-Executive Director

Jonathan Preece
CEO and Executive Director

Joanna Brigham
Acting CEO and Executive Director

Edward Lester*
Non-Executive Director

Carol Bernstein
Non-Executive Director

Baroness Rennie Fritchie
Non-Executive Director

Tim Knighton
Non-Executive Director

Elizabeth McMahon
Non-Executive Director

Simon Newton
Non-Executive Director

Lesley Thompson
Non-Executive Director

Nick Winterton
Non-Executive Director
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Meetings of the Board  
and its Committees
Further details about the structure, composition and operation 
of the Board and its primary Committees (Audit Committee 
and Remuneration and Nominations Committee) can be found 
within the Annual Governance Statement.(P20-27)

The Board meets formally approximately every six weeks. 
Board meetings are supplemented by quarterly Board 
Strategy Days that enable in depth consideration of strategic 
matters in the early stages of their development, such as 
the development of the Business Plan, and all members 
of the UK SBS Executive participate. Meeting frequency, 
membership and focus of each of the Board Committees is 
set out below.

Audit Committee - meets five times a year. Attended by  
Nick Winterton (Chair), Elizabeth McMahon, Carol Bernstein 
and Graham Raikes (Independent Member from October 
2013). The Audit Committee reviews matters in relation to 
National Audit Office (NAO) and internal audit findings as well 
as corporate risk exposure and mitigation.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee – meets 
quarterly or as business needs dictate. Attended by Dr Clive 
Grace (Chair), Lesley Thompson, Baroness Rennie Fritchie 
and Peter Swinburne (Independent member reappointed 
by the Board in September 2014). The Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee considers and advises the Board on 
remuneration and terms and conditions for Executives and 
Non-Executive Directors, nominations to the Board and its 
Committees and Executive appointments.

Commercial Committee – meets quarterly or as business 
needs dictate. Attended by Dr Clive Grace (Chair), Baroness 
Rennie Fritchie, Graham Raikes and Peter Swinburne 
(Independent members reappointed by the Board in 
September 2014). The Commercial Committee reviews 
matters of commercial interest with implications for corporate 
structure, governance and shareholders.

Property Asset Management Committee – meets 
quarterly. Attended by Philip Williams (Chair, independent 
appointed by the Board) and Elizabeth McMahon. The 
Property Asset Management Committee reviews and 
advises the Board on strategic, operational and financial 
performance relating specifically to the UK SBS Property 
Asset Management (PAM) service.

Procurement Committee – meets approximately every six 
weeks. Attended by Ed Lester (Chair to 22 March 2015 and 
as CEO from 23 March 2015), Carol Bernstein (Acting Chair 
from 23 March 2015) and Nick Winterton. The Procurement 
Committee was established at the September 2014 Board 
meeting to review strategic, operational and financial matters 
relating specifically to UK SBS procurement activity.

Independent directors
Dr Clive Grace, Nick Winterton, Baroness Rennie Fritchie, 
Elizabeth McMahon, Lesley Thompson, Carol Bernstein,  
Ed Lester (to 22 March 2015) (Board) and Graham Raikes, 
Peter Swinburne and Philip Williams (Audit Committee, 
Commercial Committee, Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee and Property Asset Management Committee) 
are considered to be independent. Nick Winterton 
(Board member and Audit Committee Chair) is the Senior 
Independent Director. All Non-Executive Directors are 
appointed by the Shareholders.

Performance evaluation of the Board
The performance of the Board is evaluated informally following 
each Board meeting and a formal annual review is undertaken 
in December/January. The performance of individual Non-
Executive Directors is evaluated annually by the Chair and 
the Senior Independent Director. The Senior Independent 
Director evaluates the performance of the Chair each year 
and the evaluation process includes feedback from Board 
members and the Executive. The Audit and Remuneration 
and Nominations Committees also undertake annual reviews 
of their effectiveness. An independent review of Board 
effectiveness was undertaken in winter 2014/15. The review 
included interviews with Board Members, Executives and 
wider stakeholders including owner and client representatives.

Dividends
No dividends were paid on ordinary shares during the period 
and the directors do not recommend a payment of a final 
ordinary dividend.

Political and charitable contributions
The Company made no political donations or incurred any 
political expenditure during the period. The Company made 
no charitable donations during the period. 

Employment of disabled people
UK SBS aims to create a productive environment, 
representative of and responsive to different cultures and 
groups, where the contributions of all employees, agency 
workers and contractors are recognised and valued and 
everyone has an equal chance to succeed. As such, UK SBS 
is committed to a proactive and inclusive approach to equality, 
which supports and encourages all under-represented 
groups, promotes an inclusive culture, and values diversity.

The Company’s Inclusiveness Policy applies to all aspects 
of employment, including recruitment, terms and conditions 
of work, training and development, promotion, performance 
management, grievance, discipline and treatment of workers 
when their contract of employment ends. Applications for 
employment by disabled people are welcome and are always 
fully considered. In the event of an employee becoming 
disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the Company continues and that appropriate support  
is provided. 

Keeping employees informed  
and engaged
Over the last year, the Company has delivered significant 
efficiency improvements against a backdrop of uncertainty 
and change. Employee numbers have dropped by 26% within 
the year and, with significant turnover (both managed and 
natural attrition) only around 60% of the people who were 
with us at the start of the year were still with us at year end. 
Those remaining have taken up the strain between them whilst 
seeing valued colleagues depart. At the same time they have 
tackled major internal issues. The uncertain environment 
had a human impact and budget pressure constrained the 
potential to invest in training and development.

Despite these pressures employees have remained resilient to 
the personal implications of change and uncertainty and have 
worked more closely together across functional boundaries, 
not least to support and learn from each other and share best 
practice. Throughout 2014/15 open and honest dialogue and 
increased team, directorate and whole company face-to-face 
engagement and use of electronic media to involve and inform 
has helped staff to focus on the job in hand and provide a 
greater sense of short-term stability against the backdrop of 
on-going uncertainty.

“Building on 
foundations created 
in 2014/15 to 
provide development 
opportunities for our 
people aligned to the 
Business Plan and 
people’s need.”
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Employee resilience continues to be tested by the uncertainty 
about the Company’s place within the BIS future shared 
services operating model. The sooner the Company knows 
what its future holds, the sooner UK SBS employees can 
focus more single-mindedly on serving their customers and 
further improving delivery. 

Central to the management of on-going uncertainty is 
continued open communication with employees, and 
engaging and involving at all levels across the business. 
Alongside this, in 2015/16 we will be building on foundations 
created in 2014/15 to provide development opportunities for 
our people that align not only with the Business Plan,  
but also with what our people have told us that they need.  
For example: 

• Delivery of management training modules on 

management techniques, technical training and customer 

relationship management on a sustainable basis to 

ensure the capability to deliver this training is embedded 

within the organisation.

• A pan organisation resourcing model to enable 

greater effectiveness and flexibility in the planning and 

deployment of our resources.

• Better harnessing of the benefits of diversity within  

our workforce.

• Utilising technology and digital channels to provide 

access to simplified policies, procedures and training 

material so as to make ‘doing the right thing’ easier  

and ensure consistency and quality.

The Company recognises and maintains an open and 
constructive relationship with the Public and Commercial 
Services Union.

Employee shareholding vehicle
In order to ensure that the company is compliant regarding 
the VAT Cost Sharing Group, it was necessary to remove 
the employee engagement company (EECo) from ownership 
in 2013/14. EECo has remained as a dormant company 
registered with Companies House throughout 2014/15 and 
will continue to be so pending the emergence of decisions 
regarding the BIS Shared Services 2020 Strategy and greater 
clarity on consequential action required by the Company.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report 
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations. 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial 
Statements for each financial year. Under that law, the 
Directors have elected to prepare the Financial Statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as adopted for use in the European Union. Under 
company law, the directors must not approve the Financial 
Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit 
or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these 
Financial Statements, the Directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply  

them consistently 

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent 

• state that the Financial Statements comply with IFRS

• prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern 

basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Company will continue in business. 

The Directors are responsible for keeping accounting records 
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at 
any time the financial position of the Company and enable 
them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with 
the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for preventing and detecting fraud and  
other irregularities. 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information included 
on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial 
Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement as to Disclosure of 
Information to Auditors 
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 
2006) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and 
each Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to 
have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 
the Company’s auditors are aware of that information. 

Auditors
The Comptroller and Auditor General (National Audit Office) 
was re-appointed as auditor during the period, under Section 
487 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ed Lester, Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 20 July 2015

“Over the last 
year, the Company 
has delivered 
significant efficiency 
improvements 
against a backdrop 
of uncertainty and 
change.”
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UK SBS ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
2014/15
As the Accounting Officer for UK Shared Business Services 
Ltd (UK SBS), I acknowledge my responsibilities for ensuring 
that there is a sound system of governance and internal control 
within the Company and that UK SBS business is conducted 
such that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted 
for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Purpose of the Governance 
Statement
The Governance Statement, for which I take responsibility, 
has been written to supplement the Company’s annual report 
and accounts. The statement records the stewardship of the 
Company by the Board and Executive Team and provides 
information about the business and control structures in  
place, Company performance and how challenges have  
been addressed. 

The statement also provides information on the Company’s 
governance framework and outlines how this supports the 
Board in making informed decisions on the effective use 
of resources and how they have assessed the Company’s 
performance against its business plan. This statement 
explains how the organisation has complied with the principles 
of good governance and reviews the effectiveness of  
these arrangements.

Corporate Governance Structures, 
Board Performance and Effectiveness 
and Compliance with the Corporate 
Governance Code
The Board, supported by its Committees, the Executive Team 
and the Company’s management infrastructure ensures 
that it complies with all appropriate guidance on Corporate 
Governance, including the 2012 UK Corporate Governance 
Code. As a limited Company, UK SBS is not obliged to follow 
the Code of Corporate Governance, however it applies 
the principles and provisions in line with best practice. In 
keeping with the spirit of the Code, the appropriateness and 
effectiveness of the Company’s governance arrangements are 

regularly reviewed and, where necessary, changes are made 
to ensure that structures remain compliant with company law 
and are fit for purpose.

Action undertaken in 2014/15 to ensure the continued 
effectiveness of the governance framework was centred on: 

• The Annual Governance Review undertaken in the 

Summer and Autumn and approved by the Board in 

September 2014.

• An independent review of the Board, based on the 

framework suggested in Building Effective Boards, Lynton 

Barker 2004 and reflecting Guidance on Effective Boards, 

FRC 2011, undertaken in November and December 

2014. The review concluded that the Board is operating 

effectively and appropriately and identified some modest 

operational recommendations. The action plan was 

agreed by the Board in February 2015 and is underway.

• A review, update and extension of the Corporate Scheme 

of Delegation as part of the Annual Governance Review 

and in response to internal audit recommendations.  

The updated Scheme was approved by the Board in 

February 2015.

• A review and refresh of Executive Team internal 

governance to ensure continued alignment with 

the Board and its committees, to respond to audit 

recommendations and to reflect the updated Corporate 

Scheme of Delegation. 

• Consideration of the implications of the Public Contracts 

Regulations 2015 for the UK SBS constitutional 

framework to inform the development of proposals for 

necessary changes to the Shareholders’ Agreement and 

Articles of Association to be implemented in 2015/16 

subject to shareholder agreement. 

The UK SBS corporate governance framework (as provided 
by the Shareholders’ Agreement and Articles of Association) 
was put in place in 2012 and is shown below. The Board 
established the Property Asset Management Committee 
to support the establishment of the Property Asset 
Management service as it transitioned from the Department 
for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) to UK SBS. The 
Procurement Committee was established in September 
2014 in light of emerging issues with service at that time. The 
Committee provides Board oversight, scrutiny and challenge 
of all activities to deliver service, control and compliance 
improvements to Procurement activities and in so doing, ensure 
that appropriate levels of assurance are provided to the Board.

The Board is appointed by all of the shareholders and 
manages the Company on their behalf. The Board is supported 
by the Executive Team comprising the CEO and all Directors.

The Board comprises ten members all of whom are appointed 
by the Shareholders as follows:

• An Independent Chair who is a Non-Executive Director 

• One Executive Director (the Chief Executive Officer)

• A Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

• Seven Non-Executive Directors. 

*Treasury Management Advisory Committee abolished 6 March 2014

UK SBS 
Board

Audit 
Committee

Commercial 
Committee

Procurement 
Committee

Property Asset 
Management 
Committee

Remuneration 
and  

Nominations 
Committee
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Two Non-Executive Director vacancies were filled in 2014/15, 
one in October 2014 and the other in March 2015, to replace 
commercial financial and digital expertise lost through the 
resignations of two Board members. The Non-Executive 
Director with digital expertise joined the Company on 1 April 
2015. One Non-Executive Director vacancy has been left 
unfilled pending both the delivery of the constitutional changes 

necessitated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and 
the outcome of the BIS Shared Services 2020 review.

Attendance of Board members at Board and Committee 
meetings in 2014/15 has been high.

The Board’s core objective is to discharge its legal 
responsibility for the leadership, strategic direction and 
stewardship of the Company. The Board ensures that 
appropriate governance structures are in place and that the 
Company complies with all relevant legal requirements. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit 
Committee and Remuneration and Nominations Committee 
are defined within the Company Articles of Association 
and their individual terms of reference. Detailed terms of 
reference are also provided for the three specialist Board 
Committees. All terms of reference are reviewed annually and 
were considered and approved as part of the 2014 Annual 
Governance Review.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee met five 
times in 2014/15. It is chaired by the UK SBS Board Chair 
and considers, inter alia, remuneration policy, performance 
related pay, terms and conditions of employment for the 
Chair, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and 
nominations for membership of the Board. The recruitment of 
all Non-Executive and Executive Directors is overseen by the 
Remuneration and Nominations Committee using a formal 
process, which includes securing shareholder support and 
Board agreement for Board appointments and reference to 
the BIS Senior Remuneration Oversight Committee (SROC) 
for all Executive appointments. In 2014/15, recruitment activity 
included two Non-Executive Directors, the appointment of 
Joanna Brigham as Acting CEO on the departure of Jonathan 
Preece and my appointment as Interim CEO. 

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Senior Independent 
Director and includes representation from external auditors 
(National Audit Office, NAO) and the internal auditors 
(Government Internal Audit Agency, GIAA). The Committee 
met five times in 2014/15, at each meeting considering inter 
alia, the audit reports completed since the last meeting, the 
Company’s Corporate Risk Register, monitoring management 
responses to and progress with implementation of audit 
recommendations and receiving detailed presentations 
on corporate risks from their risk owners. The Committee 
provides feedback to each Board meeting on all relevant audit, 
risk and control issues and conducts a formal annual review 
of its own effectiveness, with the last such review having been 
undertaken on 9 December 2014. 

The UK SBS Customer Governance Model is an important 
part of the governance infrastructure and provides the 
mechanism through which the Company engages with 
customer representatives on a collective basis to inform, 
consult and collaborate on service performance and the 
development of services. Customers are represented 
on six service specific forums which are co-chaired by 
Customers and the Company. A cross-cutting forum, to 
which all individual forum chairs are invited, provides a further 

mechanism for consideration of Company-wide matters 
and issues impacting more than one service area. The third 
element of the Customer Governance Model is twice yearly 
Owners’ and Customers’ Summit Meetings. These Summits 
are held in October and March each year and provide an 
important opportunity for discussion of performance against 
the Business Plan and ensure Owner and Customer input to 
the development of the next period’s Business Plan prior to 
seeking formal Shareholder agreement. It should be noted that 
the March 2015 meeting was deferred until 16th April 2015.

Risk Assessment
UK SBS governance arrangements provide for a well-defined 
organisational design where accountabilities are supported by 
transparent and effective decision-making. This supports the 
effective operation of our management processes to achieve 
our objectives, as set out in the Company’s Business Plan,  
by the identification and management of our risks and 
ensuring appropriate control arrangements are in place.

The Company’s system of internal control has been in place 
for the full year ending 31 March 2015 and consists of, but 
is not limited to, management checks, system controls, 
documented procedures, risk management and business 
continuity. The effectiveness of these Controls is monitored 
through management checks, compliance reviews and 
assurance engagements carried out by the Company’s 
Internal Auditors (GIAA).

The Company has adopted the ‘three lines of defence’ 
approach to risk management: the Management’s Risk and 
Control Activities, a Compliance Oversight Function, and 
Independent Assurance. As part of this, the Company has 
instituted a process for ensuring appropriate ownership of 

NOTES:

1. Jonathan Preece resigned from the Company with effect from 9 January 2015.

2.  Elizabeth McMahon was appointed to the Audit Committee pending Board vacancies being filled and a review of 

the membership of all Board Committees.

3. Carol Bernstein was appointed to the Board from 23 October 2014.

4.  Joanna Brigham was appointed as Acting CEO from 1 January 2015 until the formal start date of the Interim CEO 

on 23 March 2015. During this period she was a member of the Board.

5.  Graham Raikes completed his term on the Board on 31 July 2013 but has remained as a committee member of 

both the Audit Committee and Commercial Committee. 

6. Tim Knighton resigned from the Board with effect from 1 May 2014. 

7. Simon Newton resigned from the Board with effect from 1 August 2014.

8.  Edward Lester commenced his appointment as Interim CEO on 23 March 2015 at which time his status changed 

from Non-Executive to Executive Director of the Company.

Board and Committee Attendance for 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Meetings attended per Board Member out of meetings eligible to attend

Name of Board Member Board  Audit Committee

Dr Clive Grace 8/8 n/a

Jonathan Preece1 5/6 3/4

Lesley Thompson 6/8 n/a

Nick Winterton 8/8 5/5

Edward Lester8 8/8 n/a

Baroness Rennie Fritchie 8/8 n/a

Elizabeth McMahon2 7/8 3/3

Carol Bernstein3 4/4 2/2

Joanna Brigham4 1/1 1/1

Graham Raikes5 n/a 5/5

Tim Knighton6 0/1 1/1

Simon Newton7 2/3 2/2

“Delivered cumulative 
procurement benefits 
of £257million since 
2008.”
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non-pay costs. This resulted in the loss of 26% of staff during 
the course of the year. While not all staff exits were able to be 
timed to coincide with process efficiencies and the Company 
has lost valuable knowledge and experience, for the most part, 
the Company was able to ensure appropriate levels of 
knowledge transfer, maintain service and manage  
customer expectations. 

A supplier challenge to UK SBS procurement was 
satisfactorily resolved. While risk of supplier challenge will 
remain as an inherent risk for the Company, concerted 
action has been taken to minimise the potential for this risk 
materialising in the future.

As we go into the new financial year the top five risks facing 
the Company, as captured in the Corporate Risk Register, are:

• UK SBS does not receive funding for investment in 

essential maintenance, improvements, capital projects or 

significant change activity resulting in the degradation or 

failure of the service. 

• A UK SBS Procurement exercise is subject to external 

challenge, resulting in financial loss to UK SBS and 

damage to our reputation.

• Reduced customer volumes lead to higher unit costs as 

UK SBS is unable to respond either quickly enough or at 

all with corresponding step decreases in costs. 

• An inadequate control and security framework means 

that company or customer data is compromised.

• Failure to build effective relationships with key external 

stakeholders limits the Company’s influence to future 

opportunities.

In the case of all five risks, I have assigned members of the 
Executive Team as risk owners, detailed risk response plans 
are in place, risks are being managed and monitored against 
those plans and within the Company’s risk appetite by the 
Executive, the Audit Committee and the Board.

Data Security
The Company has not been made aware of any significant 
information security breaches in the 2014/15 financial year. 
However, there have been a number of small breaches, all of  
which have been managed and reported in line with set 
procedures.

Due to the high-volume transactional nature of much of 
our business and the necessary requirement for human 
intervention in our processes, occasional breaches may occur 

despite our best efforts. We take every possible precaution 
to minimise the risk of a breach and, over the year, common 
trends have been identified with mitigating measures put in 
place. All staff are required to undertake security training on 
joining the Company and periodically thereafter, our security 
governance structure is sound and we learn lessons from 
each incident. Where human error is identified, additional 
training and HR intervention takes place, ultimately resulting in 
disciplinary action if required.

Our security policies, including incident management and 
reporting, are subject to regular reviews to ensure that they 
remain fit for purpose.

Although deemed to be low risk, work to improve third party 
supplier assurance is on-going within a bespoke project.

Macpherson Review
The review of quality assurance of government analytical 
models undertaken by Sir Nicholas Macpherson and 
published by HM Treasury in March 2013 made a number 
of recommendations for government departments and their 
arm’s length bodies. UK SBS has reviewed its use of analytical 
modelling and has concluded that, at this time, none of the 
models currently in use can be considered to be business 
critical as defined by the review. All models in use have senior 
responsible owners. Any developments to the content and 
application of existing models and the development and 
implementation of new models will be considered against the 
Macpherson recommendations. Those models that are in the 
future considered to be business critical will be reported as 
required through BIS.

Assurance on Tax Compliance 
The Alexander Review published in May 2012 made a number 
of recommendations to ensure that the highest standards 
of integrity could be demonstrated in the tax arrangements 
of senior public appointees. I can confirm that UK SBS 
senior employees are all paid through the payroll and that 
arrangements are in place through HR to provide assurance 
that appropriate tax arrangements are in place to cover any 
other appointees covered by the report. 

business process risk through regular management reviews 
of all business processes across the Oracle 12.0.6 and 12.1.3 
environments, coupled with certification by Heads of Service 
(quarterly) and Directors (every six months) that the processes 
and controls for which they are responsible are in place and 
operating effectively. 

The certification process was rolled out at the end of the 
second quarter of the 2013/14 year and has been in place 
throughout the 2014/15 year. This process of self-assessment 
and internal peer review is critical for providing me with both 
the required confidence that our business processes are 
operating effectively as designed and satisfy the relevant 
control objective, and also for highlighting process steps 
or controls requiring improvement and the action to be 
taken. At the end of each quarter I report to customers on 
the outcomes of our certification process together with the 
results of internal audit reports and audit actions completed 
in that quarter. I am confident that the certification process 
has taken hold internally and is now enabling robust and 
realistic assessment and appropriately targeted action. In 
addition to implementing the quarterly certification process, 
and consistent with the three lines of defence model, during 
2015/16 we will be increasing the levels of on-going control and 
compliance testing through peer review and random sampling.

The Company also has a Risk Management Strategy and 
Policy in place. Company risk appetite has been considered 
and each Directorate has its own Risk Register, which feeds 
into the Company’s Corporate Risk Register. The Company’s 
Risk Management and Internal Control arrangements are 
scrutinised by the Audit, Risk and Control Forum (ARC), which 
I chair, and is attended by representatives from the Executive 
Team and the Head of Legal. Further scrutiny of the Company’s 
Risk Management and Internal Control arrangements is 
carried out by the Company’s Audit Committee.

Internal Audit review of the Company’s Risk Management 
Framework in October 2014 concluded that while the 
process and framework is well designed, it was not 
operating effectively. In light of the Limited assurance given, 
considerable work has been undertaken, at corporate level in 
the first instance, to ensure not least that risks and actions are 
articulated clearly; risk response plans are in place and being 
used actively to mitigate all “red” risks; issues are logged and 
managed and closed risks remain visible. I and my Executive 
Team actively scrutinise and manage the Corporate Risk 
Register through our monthly Executive team meetings and 
ARC. As a result of this effort, the Audit Committee concluded 
in February 2015 that the Corporate Risk Register now reflects 

good practice. Having put in place a robust framework and 
achieved significant improvements at corporate level, attention 
is being turned to Directorate level risk management to ensure 
that the framework is being used consistently with active risk 
identification, management and mitigation by Directorate 
Senior Management teams, challenge through Directorate 
Star Chambers, challenge through the Audit Committee and 
escalation of Directorate risks to the corporate risk register 
where necessary. 

During 2014/15 four particularly significant risks became live 
issues, all of which were successfully managed. 

Two of the issues – staff attrition and delays to the Oracle 
12.0.6 upgrade – arose particularly from the uncertainties 
around the anticipated transfer of transactional services 
to Shared Service Centre Limited (SSCL) as part of the 
Government Next Generation Shared Services strategy. 
Considerable action has been taken, in close consultation with 
customers, both to identify upgrade options for Oracle 12.0.6 
and to ensure on-going support pending a decision on next 
steps. While shareholder agreement to terminate the SSCL 
contract in March 2015 eased these particular uncertainties, 
risks remain pending a decision on the Oracle 12.0.6 upgrade 
and the outcome of the BIS Shared Services 2020 review.  
As a consequence, our capacity and capability and the Oracle 
12.0.6 upgrade continue to be actively managed through the 
Corporate Risk Register.

The budget challenge for the Company for 2014/15 required 
us to offer two voluntary exit schemes as well as addressing 
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GIAA was appointed as the Company’s Internal Auditors 
for the financial year 2014/15. In his Annual report and 
opinion dated March 2015, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) 
acknowledges the challenges that the Company has faced 
throughout the year and commends the Company for 
maintaining its core system of internal control despite the level 
of staff changes and uncertainty. The HIA has provided a split 
opinion in recognition of the split between UK SBS customer 
facing and internal operations, indicating that were a single 
opinion to be quoted it should be Limited Assurance.

For Customer Facing operations (excluding Procurement) 
a Moderate Assurance rating has been given, reflecting 
the satisfactory outcome of GIAA testing of the design and 
operation of the majority of core processes. On the basis of 
the two specially commissioned reviews, Procurement has 
received an Unsatisfactory Assurance rating. The HIA opinion 
acknowledges the seriousness with which the Board and 
Executive has responded to the procurement issues and 
recommendations, that a number of initiatives were underway 
independently to improve governance, risk management and 
internal controls and indicates satisfaction that action plans 
are robust.

UK SBS Internal operations have also received a Limited 
Assurance rating reflecting the need for greater maturity in 
the Company’s governance and risk management processes 
and the need to embed and enforce key processes and 
policies further. 

Overall, procurement and weaknesses in governance and risk 
management are identified by the HIA as the matters requiring 
to be highlighted in this Governance Statement and issues 
and actions are described elsewhere in this AGS.

The audit plan for 2015/16 includes early follow up of 
these high priority areas to test the extent to which 
recommendations have been delivered and that necessary 
changes in culture and behaviours have been or are being 
embedded.

Conclusion 
I, along with the Board, have considered the evidence 
provided regarding the production of the Annual Governance 
Statement. The first step for tackling weakness is to know and 
accept that it exists. Considerable action has already been 
taken to address the weaknesses identified through internal 
control processes and internal audit due not least to the 
seriousness with which I, my Executive team and the Board 
are treating their responsibilities. 

On the basis of this review, I am satisfied that the 
organisation’s overall governance and internal control 
structures are largely in place and fit for purpose and that 
the weaknesses are known and are being addressed 
appropriately and will be subject to early internal audit in 
2015/16 where improved assurance ratings will be expected. 
Alongside this, there will be on-going review and development 
of a wider range of service, governance, risk and controls 
matters as set out in the 2015/16 Business Plan. 

Ed Lester 
Chief Executive Officer 
Date: 30 July 2015

U K  S B S  A N N U A L  G O V E R N A N C E  S TAT E M E N T  2 0 1 4 / 1 5

In 2014/15 the Company identified 43 contractors who 
fell within the Alexander Review criteria. Assurance that 
the appropriate tax arrangements are in place for all 43 
contractors was sought and provided.

Significant control weaknesses 
identified during the year
The Company’s assessment of the effectiveness of business 
processes identified that inadequate controls were in place 
relating to systems accreditation and disaster recovery for 
Oracle 12.0.6 and 12.1.3. More detailed plans to address the 
systems accreditation and disaster recovery issues with 12.0.6 
will be put in place once a decision has been made with 
Customers regarding the potential upgrade of the platform. 
For 12.1.3, an effective disaster recovery solution will be in 
place in Q3 of financial year 2015/16.

Our assessment also identified that the control framework 
operating within the procurement function was inadequate. 
Internal Audit was asked to undertake two procurement 
reviews that were additional to planned audit activity. The 
first review was a thorough analysis of a number of in-flight 
high-risk procurements. The audit found weaknesses in the 
framework of governance underpinning the procurement 
function relating to governance and management, policy 
and process and resourcing. All 11 recommendations were 
accepted and appropriate remedial action has been taken 
through an expanded Procurement Improvement Plan. All but 
three of the recommendations were completed in year. Those 
outstanding are well underway and will be completed within 
Q1 of financial year 2015/16. As a result of the reviews and 
consequent improvement activity, control and compliance 
within procurement has been strengthened. Close attention 
by the Executive, the Board, the Procurement Committee and 
Audit Committee will continue to be given in 2015/16 to ensure 
not only that outstanding actions are delivered, but also that 
change is embedded and improvements are sustained. 

The second review commissioned in autumn 2014 considered 
wider UK SBS governance procedures with the focus on 
new business opportunities and litigation management. In 
response to the audit recommendations a litigation protocol 
has been formally adopted and action is underway for 
completion by the end of Q1 2015/16 to create rigorous new 
business guidance, templates and processes. Other key 
activities to address audit concerns include the roll out of the 
Corporate Scheme of Delegation through individual Delegation 
Letters, strengthening the terms of reference and operation 
of the Executive’s Investment and Appraisal Committee to 
ensure appropriate levels of internal scrutiny and challenge 
and fully embedding the risk management framework within 
each Directorate.

The planned audit of UK SBS internal records and knowledge 
management in February 2015 identified some areas of good 
practice including the existence of comprehensive policies 
on Freedom of Information requests, data protection and 
records management. However, we received an unsatisfactory 
opinion due to the lack of a formalised consistent approach 
being adopted. The central recommendation has been 
taken forward through a formal project supported by 
a comprehensive PID to drive the design, delivery and 
embedding of required actions. All recommendations have 
been accepted and action is underway with the active 
engagement of the Executive and its Operations Committee 
which is made up of senior managers across the business.

Review of Effectiveness
I, along with the UK SBS Board, have responsibility for 
conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of the 
systems of the organisation’s governance, risk management 
and internal control. This review has been informed by the 
Company’s Audit Committee, the oversight and review work 
of executive managers, the Certification process implemented 
toward the end of the 2013/14 financial year and the 
Company’s internal and external auditors, all of whom have 
a role in ensuring the Company’s governance structures and 
internal control framework are appropriately designed and 
operating effectively. The Governance Statement represents 
the end product of the review of the effectiveness of the 
governance framework, risk management and internal control.

“The lasting 
impression of this 
difficult year has been 
the strength of spirit 
and determination 
UK SBS employees 
have shown. ”



29R I S I N G  T O  T H E  C H A L L E N G E
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REMUNERATION REPORT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2015
Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee (the 
Committee) is responsible for considering and making 
recommendations to the Board on the policy for the 
remuneration of the Company’s senior management, being 
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and any other executive 
reporting directly to the CEO. Remuneration in this context 
covers salaries, bonus schemes and any other benefits. The 
Committee also considers and advises the Board on the 
appropriateness of the remuneration policy for all employees 
and proposals for any annual pay award in accordance with 
government guidelines. 

The Committee is a sub-committee of the Board and its non-
executive members in 2014/15 were:

• Dr Clive Grace (Chair)

• Dr Lesley Thompson

• Baroness Rennie Fritchie

• Peter Swinburne (independent)

The terms of reference of the Committee were agreed by the 
Board as part of its Annual Governance Review on  
10th October 2014. 

Service Contracts
Non-Executive members of the Board are appointed for a 
fixed term of office, renewable by agreement. Some Non-
Executive Directors offer their services on a pro bono basis. 
In 2014/15 four Non-Executive Directors provided their 
services on a pro bono basis: Ed Lester, Lesley Thompson, 
Tim Knighton and Simon Newton.

The Company’s current policy is to appoint all Non-Executive 
Directors, whether salaried or not, on fixed term contracts 
of three years unless there are genuine reasons for offering 
a lesser term. The notice period for Non-Executive Director 
appointments is no less than three months. All service 
contracts for appointment of Non-Executive Directors are 
subject to the approval of the Committee and subsequently 
the Board, with the concurrence of the Shareholders and 
ratified at the following AGM. 

The Committee is responsible for making recommendations 
to the Board on the appointment, remuneration and terms and 
conditions for all executive directors. This includes ensuring 
compliance with government policies and processes where 
they apply.

Information regarding Executive Directors’ and Non-Executive 
Directors’ service contracts follows. 

“Our primary focus 
will continue to be on 
our current owners 
and customers and 
wider developments 
will be guided by 
our owners and the 
BIS Shared Services 
2020 Review.”

Board Members and Non-Executive Directors 
(excluding the Chief Executive Officer)

Name of Board Member
Appointment Remuneration £000

From To 2014/15 2013/14

Dr Clive Grace (chair) 01 August 2012 31 July 2015 50 - 55 50 - 55

Nick Winterton 01 August 2012 31 July 2015 10 - 15 5 - 10

Ed Lester1 01 August 2012 22 March 2015 N/A N/A

Lesley Thompson7 01 August 2012 31 July 2015 N/A N/A

Tim Knighton2 01 August 2012 30 April 2014 N/A N/A

Simon Newton3 01 August 2012 31 July 2014 N/A N/A

Baroness Rennie Fritchie 01 August 2013 31 July 2016 5 - 10 0 - 5

Elizabeth McMahon 01 October 2013 30 September 2016 10 - 15 0 - 5

Peter Swinburne4 01 August 2013 31 July 2015 0 - 5 0 - 5

Phillip Williams5 01 November 2013 31 October 2016 15 - 20 0 - 5

Carol Bernstein 23 October 2014 22 October 2017 5 - 10 0

Graham Raikes6 1 August 2013 31 July 2015 N/A N/A

1  Ed Lester resigned as a non-executive director on 22 March 2015 and was appointed as interim CEO on 23 March 2015. He received no remuneration in his role 

as a non-executive director.

2 Tim Knighton was appointed for 3 years but resigned before the end of his term.

3 Simon Newton was appointed for 3 years but resigned before the end of his term.

4  Peter Swinburne is not a non-executive director of the Company but was appointed by the Board as an independent member of the Remuneration and 

Nominations Committee and the Commercial Committee.

5  Phillip Williams is not a non-executive director of the Company but was appointed by the Board to Chair the Property Asset Management Committee of the Board.

6  Graham Raikes is not a non-executive director of the Company but was appointed by the Board as an independent member of the Audit Committee and  

the Commercial Committee. For related parties purposes he is an employee of AHRC and is additionally the Head of the Professional Support Unit providing 

mid-office services for AHRC, EPSRC and ESRC.

7 For related parties purposes Lesley Thompson is an employee of EPSRC.
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Jonathan Preece was seconded to BIS for 2 days per week 
until 30 November 2013, for which there was an agreement 
to recharge a proportion of costs to BIS. The figures shown 
in the table above are shown before any recharge. The table 
above reflects remuneration from UK SBS only and includes 
allowances of £40k per year to cover expenses. He left the 
organisation on 12 January 2015 and his full year equivalent 
salary was £165-170k.

Ed Lester joined the organisation on the 23 March 2015 and 
his full year equivalent salary is £150-155K.

During 2013/14, the Director of Finance, Ruth Elliot, was an 
employee of the Department for Business Innovation and 
Skills and was seconded to UK SBS from 22 Jul 2013.  
The cost of this secondment to the Company during 2013/14 
was £0. She became an employee of UK SBS on 1 March 
2014. She left UK SBS on the 15 March 2015 and her full year 
equivalent salary was £80-85K.

Anita Peters, an employee of the Department for Business 
Innovation and Skills, was seconded to UK SBS as Director of 
Finance from 16 March 2015. The cost of this secondment to 
the Company during 2014/15 was £0-5k.

Nicola Dunne left on 28 February 2015, receiving a 
compensation payment of £35-40K for loss of office. This is 
shown in the above salary figure and her full year equivalent 
salary was £115-120k.

Andrew Hardingham’s salary figure includes a compensation 
payment of £70-75k.

Richard Edwards’s salary figure includes a compensation 
payment of £95-100K.

Richard Holmes left the organisation on 30 November 2014 
and his full year equivalent salary was £110-115k.

No Executive bonuses were awarded in the years 2014/15 
or 2013/14.

UK SBS Executive Team (including the Chief Executive Officer)

Salary
Salary covers pensionable and non-pensionable amounts 
and includes: gross salaries; performance related pay; 
overtime; allowances and any ex-gratia payments. It does 
not include any amounts for the reimbursement of expenses 
directly incurred in the performance of an individual’s duties in 
accordance with the UK SBS travel and subsistence policy.

Benefits in kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits 
provided by the employer and treated by HMRC as a taxable 
emolument. Benefits in kind were not provided to any member 
of senior management during the financial year.

Bonuses
Bonuses are based on performance levels attained and are 
made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the 
performance in the year in which they become payable to the 
individual. The performance related pay awards reported in 
2014/15 relate to performance in 2014/15 and the comparative 
awards reported for 2013/14 relate to the performance in 
2013/14.

Pay multiples
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship 
between the total remuneration of the highest-paid director 
in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest-paid executive 
director in UK SBS in the financial year 2014/15 was 
£165,000-£170,000 (2013/14: £165,000-£170,000). This was 
6.62 times (2013/14: 6.1) the median remuneration of the 
workforce, which was £25,620 (2013/14: £27,771).

Total remuneration includes salary (as defined above), non-
consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind as 
well as severance payments. It does not include employer 
pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value 
of pensions.

Pension scheme
The main pension scheme used by employees of UK SBS  
is the Research Councils Pension Scheme (RCPS), which is  
a defined benefit government pension scheme. The Company 
also offers a Partnership stakeholder pension. Further  
details of these schemes are given in the notes to the 
financial statements.

The remuneration and pension tables shown following include 
members of senior management subject to audit.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ed Lester, Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 30 July 2015

Remuneration of senior employees subject to audit

Single total figure of remuneration (within £5,000 bands)

Employee Name Salary 
(£’000)

Bonus payments 
(£’000)

Pension Benefits Total 
(£’000)

2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14

Brigham J 120 - 125 45 - 50 0 0 45 - 50 15 - 20 165 - 170 60 - 65

Dunne N 120 - 125 115 - 120 0 0 30 - 35 45 - 50 150 - 155 160 - 165

Edwards R 0 180 - 185 0 0 0 50 - 55 0 230-235

Elliot R 80 - 85 5 - 10 0 0 15 - 20 0 100 - 105 5 - 10

Foxall G 80 - 85 0 0 0 0 0 80 - 85 0

Greengrass C 95 - 100 85 - 90 0 0 0 - 5 0 95 - 100 85-90

Hardingham A 0 200 - 205 0 0 0 10 - 15 0 210-215

Holmes R 75 - 80 110 - 115 0 0 20 - 25 35 - 40 95 - 100 145 - 150

Layton A 90 - 95 45 -50 0 0 10 - 15 15 - 20 105 - 110 60 - 65

Lester E 0 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 5 0

Preece J 135 - 140 165 - 170 0 0 65 - 70 60 - 65 200 - 205 230 - 235

Taylor R 90 - 95 80 - 85 0 0 340 - 3451 30 - 35 430 - 435 110 - 115

1  This includes benefits transferred in from another scheme.

R E M U N E R AT I O N  R E P O R T  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  3 1  M A R C H  2 0 1 5

Name Appointment Date Expired Term Notice Period

Joanna Brigham1 11 November 2013 Open Ended 3 months

Nicola Dunne 26 November 2007 Left 28 February 2015 3 months

Ruth Elliot 22 July 2013 Left 15 March 2015 3 months

Gavin Foxall 01 March 2015 Open Ended 3 months

Claire Greengrass 13 May 2013 Open Ended 3 months

Richard Holmes 13 June 2011 Left 30 November 2014 6 months

Andrew Layton 03 September 2013 Open Ended 3 months

Ed Lester2 23 March 2015 22 December 2015 N/A

Anita Peters 15 March 2015 14 September 2015 N/A

Jonathan Preece3 15 August 2011 Left 12 January 2015 6 months

Roger Taylor 04 February 2013 Open Ended 3 months

1 Joanna Brigham became a Board member for the duration of her appointment as acting CEO from 1 January 2015 to 22 March 2015. 

2  Ed Lester resigned as a non-executive director on 22 March 2015 and was appointed as interim CEO on 23 March 2015. He received no remuneration in his role 

as a non-executive director.

3 Jonathan Preece, who was the CEO, ceased to be a Board member on 31 December 2014.
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A table of the contributions by pay band and scheme is provided below.

A Partnership Pension Account was made available to new 
staff from 1 October 2002, based on the portable Stakeholder 
Pension introduced by the Government in 2001. This is a 
defined contribution scheme. The employers pay the RCPS 
0.8% of pensionable pay to cover death in service and 
ill health benefits. The employers pay the balance to the 
employee’s private pension provider.

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member 
is entitled to receive when they reach pension age or 
immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the 
scheme if they are already at or over pensionable age. 
Pensionable age is 60 for members of classic, classic plus 
and premium and 65 for members of nuvos.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially 
assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits 
accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any 
contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. 
A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or 
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and 
chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in the former 
scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that 
the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total 
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures 
include the value of any pension benefit in another scheme 
or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the 

Research Councils’ pension arrangement and for which the 
RCPS has received a transfer payment commensurate with 
the additional pension liabilities being assumed. They also 
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member 
as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension 
service in the scheme at their own cost.

Real increase in the value of the CETV
The real increase in the value of the CETV reflects the increase 
effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions 
paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits 
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) 
and uses common market valuation factors for the start and 
end of the period.

Details of Pension Scheme 
Employees of UK SBS are members of the Research 
Councils’ Pension Schemes (RCPS) which are defined benefit 
schemes funded from annual grant-in-aid on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. The benefits are by analogy to the Principal Civil Service 
Pension Scheme, except that while the schemes provide 
retirement and related benefits based on final or average 
emoluments, redundancy and injury benefits are administered 
and funded by the Council. The scheme is administered by the 
Research Councils’ Joint Superannuation Service. 

From 30 July 2007, employees may be in one of four defined 
schemes; either a ‘final salary’ scheme (classic, classic plus 
or premium); or a career average scheme (nuvos). Pensions 
payable are increased annually in line with changes in the 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI). Employees’ contributions 
vary between 3% and 8.05% depending on scheme. The 
employer’s contribution is agreed by the RCPS Board of 
Management on the recommendation of the Government 
Actuary’s Department (GAD) and is currently set at 26.0% of 
pensionable pay.

The Research Councils Pension Scheme (RCPS) is a 
‘by-analogy’ scheme to the Principal Civil Service Pension 
Scheme (PCSPS) and as a result any changes made to 
the PCSPS, including member contribution rates, are 
automatically applied to the RCPS.

On 1 April 2015 PCSPS launched a new pension scheme 
called Alpha. This scheme is similar to the Nuvos career 
average scheme but with the retirement age aligned to the 
state pension age. RCPS cannot at present create a by 
analogy Alpha scheme as the legislation does not currently 
permit this. Reform options are currently being discussed 
with HM Treasury and BIS have given permission for RCPS to 
continue ‘as is’ beyond 1 April 2015.

Employee 
Name

Accrued pension 
and lump sum 
at pension age 

as at 31/03/2015 
(£5,000 bands)

Real increase 
in pension and 

lump sum at 
pension age as 
at 31/03/2015 

(£2,500 bands)

Cash equivalent 
transfer value 

as at 31/03/2014 
(£1,000)

Cash equivalent 
transfer value 

as at 31/03/2015 
(£1,000)

Real increase in 
cash equivalent 
transfer value 

as at 31/03/2015 
(£1,000)

Brigham J 0 - 5 2.5 - 5 13 49 25

Dunne N 5 - 10 0 - 2.5 59 85 14

Elliot R 55 - 60 57.5 - 60 1 178 17

Greengrass C 0 - 5 0 - 2.5 0 2 -1

Holmes R 5 - 10 0 - 2.5 88 110 12

Layton A 5 - 10 2.5 - 5 15 28 6

Preece J 5 - 10 2.5 - 5 39 74 21

Taylor R 30 - 35 30 - 32.5 32 431 35

Gavin Foxall opted out of pension arrangements for the whole year, so no figures are shown. 

Ed Lester did not accrue any pension benefits during the financial year, so no figures are shown.  

Anita Peters was an employee of the Department for Business Innovation and Skills and was seconded to UK SBS from 16 March 2015, so no figures are shown.

Pension Benefits of senior employees subject to audit

Annualised  
pensionable 

earnings

Classic % contribution rate 
before tax relief  
as at 1 April 2015

Classic Plus, Premium & Nuvos % 
contribution rate before tax relief 

as at 1 April 2015

Up to £15,000 3.00 4.60

£15,001 - £21,000 4.60 4.60

£21,001 - £47,000 5.45 5.45

£47,001 - £150,000 7.35 7.35

£150,001 and above 8.05 8.05

R E M U N E R AT I O N  R E P O R T  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  3 1  M A R C H  2 0 1 5
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I N D E P E N D E N T  A U D I T O R ’ S  R E P O R T

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 

state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of 

the loss for the year then ended; and

• the financial statements have been properly prepared 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards as adopted by European Union; and

• the financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Emphasis of matter paragraph 
reflecting going concern uncertainty
Without qualifying my opinion, I draw attention to the 
disclosures made in note 1 to the financial statements 
concerning the application of the going concern principle in 
light of review on-going at the year-end by the company’s sole 
shareholder, BIS, into the operation of its Shared Services 
up to 2020. This review included a consideration of UK SBS’ 
future, and following its conclusion BIS aim to transfer 
UK SBS’ services to other providers over the next three years. 
There is, therefore, material uncertainty over UK SBS’s ability 
to continue to operate in its current form over the long term.

Opinion on regularity
In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and 
income recorded in the financial statements have been 
applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the 
financial transactions recorded in the financial statements 
conform to the authorities which govern them.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by 
the Companies Act 2006
In my opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report 
for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which I report by exception
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters 
where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report to you 
if, in my opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or 

returns adequate for my audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by my staff; or

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the 

accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified 

by law are not made; or

• I have not received all of the information and explanations 

I require for my audit.

Matthew Kay (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

For and on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General (Statutory Auditor) 
National Audit Office 
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT TO THE 
SHAREHOLDERS OF UK SHARED 
BUSINESS SERVICES LTD

I have audited the financial statements of UK Shared Business 
Services Ltd (UK SBS) for the year ended 31 March 2015 
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and International Financial 
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Respective responsibilities of the 
directors and the auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit and express 
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK 
and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. In addition I read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report.

I am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the expenditure and income recorded in 
the financial statements have been applied to the purposes 
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recorded 
in the financial statements conform to the authorities which 
govern them.
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F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

Notes
2015 

£’000
2014 

£’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue 2 53,686 57,331

Cost of sales 2 (49,597) (58,038)

GROSS (LOSS)/PROFIT 4,089  (707)

Administrative expenses 2 (11,528) (8,383)

OPERATING LOSS (7,439) (9,090)

Finance income 5  8  28

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 6 (7,431) (9,062)

Taxation (9) -

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (7,440) (9,062)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (7,440) (9,062)

All revenue and costs relate to continuing activities.  
No gains and losses have been recognised apart from 
the loss for the year.

The Company has retained losses that approximately 
equal the depreciation and amortisation that has 
been charged to date. This is because since the 
Company’s inception it has not included depreciation 
and amortisation within the cost base used to calculate 
service charges to clients. The Company seeks to 
set service charges such that it breaks even before 
depreciation, amortisation and the release of deferred 
income that covers certain elements of depreciation.

During the 12 month period the Company recorded 
a surplus of £0.4m before depreciation, amortisation 
and the release of deferred income. Included within 
the Cost of sales is £9.6 million cost of depreciation 
and amortisation. Any surplus or deficit recorded in the 
Company’s accounts is consolidated with the sponsor 
department’s accounts.

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes
2015 

£’000
2014 

£’000

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 8 19,877 27,930

Property, plant and equipment 8 3,074 3,892

Other receivables 9 38 51

22,989 31,873

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 9 4,558 10,372

Current cash and equivalents 10 4,101 3,134

8,659 13,506

TOTAL ASSETS 31,648 45,379

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 11 7,769 12,670

Provisions 12 400 0

8,169 12,670

 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 490 836

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables 11 3,559 5,349

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,728 18,019

NET ASSETS 19,920 27,360

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Called up share capital 15 62,016 62,016

Retained earnings (42,096) (34,656)

TOTAL EQUITY 19,920 27,360

The financial statements were approved and authorised 
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2015 
and were signed on its behalf by:

Ed Lester 
Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 30 July 2015

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes

2015 

£’000

2014 

£’000

 

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 18 1,341 1,013

Net cash from operating activities 1,341 1,013

 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of intangible fixed assets (112) (5,630)

Purchases of tangible fixed assets (661) (1,627)

Movement in cash on deposit 0 1,500

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 400 (286)

Taxation (9) 0

Interest received 8 28

 

Net cash from investing activities (374) (6,015)

 

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 967 (5,002)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10 3,134 8,136

 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 4,101 3,134

Statement of Changes in Equity

Called up 

share 

capital

£’000

Retained 

earnings

£’000

Total 

equity

£’000

Balance at 1 April 2013 62,016 (25,594)  36,422

Retained profit/(loss) for 2013/14 - (9,062) (9,062)

Balance at 31 March 2014 62,016 (34,656) 27,360

Retained profit/(loss) for 2014/15 - (7,440) (7,440)

Balance at 31 March 2015 62,016  (42,096) 19,920
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
1. Accounting Policies

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and meet the accounting and 
disclosure requirements of the Companies Act 2006 
and the accounting and financial reporting standards 
issued or adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board as interpreted for public sector use by 
the Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in so far as 
these requirements are appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with IFRS requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. 
Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. There are no 
judgements or key sources of estimate uncertainty that 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements other than as disclosed in Note 
7 regarding non-current assets.

1.2 Going concern basis 

Towards the year-end, BIS launched a review of shared 
services provision within its Departmental Group. The 
future of UK SBS was within the scope of this review, 
and while no decision had been made by the year-end, 
the Directors were aware of the possibility that the BIS 
review might recommend the future break-up of the 
Company.

As described in Note 21 to the financial statements, 
the BIS Executive Board made a decision in June 2015 
regarding the future of UK SBS. The stated intention of 
BIS to seek to transfer UK SBS services over the next 
3 years to other government organisations or external 
providers creates a significant uncertainty over whether 
UK SBS will continue to operate in the long term.

Nevertheless, the Directors consider that in the  
interim period:

•  the Company will continue in operational  
existence; and

•  sufficient funding is in place to enable UK SBS  
to continue trading and to meet its obligations as 
they fall due. 

This opinion is based on enquiries with BIS, the major 
shareholder, as well as commitments made by the 
shareholders as formalised in their adoption of the 2014 
to 2019 Business Plan and commitments made by 
shareholders through their continuing relationship with 
the Company. This commitment is formalised with the 
Shareholders Agreement. The details of the services 
provided are included within the Business Services 
Agreement, which sets out the terms of service 
provision between UK SBS and its major customers. 

For these reasons, the Directors continue to prepare the 
financial statements on the basis of going concern. 

In the context of the uncertainty described above, the 
Directors have specifically reviewed the useful lives of 
the Company’s high value intangible assets relating to 
Oracle ERP implementations, and are content that these 
provide a reasonable estimate of the assets’ remaining 
value. However, this assumption is sensitive to the 
timing of future transfers, and (in respect of residual 
values) the financial terms obtained in respect of the 
technology platforms. The asset lives for the largest 
platforms are disclosed in Note 8 and provide a basis 
for quantifying these sensitivities.

1.3 New accounting standards and interpretations 

The Company has considered the newly issued 
accounting standards, interpretations and amendments 
to published standards that are not yet effective and 
concluded that they are either not relevant to the 
Company or that they would not have a significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

1.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in the accounts at the point 
that it is earned through the delivery of services. Fees 
for the provision of continuing services are agreed 
with customers at the start of each financial year and 
are set at a level to cover the anticipated costs of 
service provision, but do not cover depreciation and 
amortisation. The cost of other activities is charged in 
arrears on a cost recovery basis.

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

1.5 Deferred revenue

From time-to-time, the Company may receive 
specific amounts of income in advance of making the 
expenditure the income is intended to cover. In such 
cases, the income is deferred and released as income 
in the period in which the relevant costs are recognised, 
including some relating to non-current assets, which is 
released as income over the useful life of the relevant 
assets. If no relevant costs are incurred, the Company 
refers to the provider of that income to gain permission 
to release any deferred income that is no longer required. 

Deferred income is shown within liabilities in the 
statement of financial position.

1.6 Non-current assets and depreciation

The value of the Company’s non-current assets is stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Only those assets costing more than £3,000 
and having an economic value to the Company beyond 
the year in which they were bought are capitalised. 
Where parts of an item have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate assets.

Depreciation is applied on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful economic lives of assets. Assets 
under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation 
methods, useful lives and residual values of non-current 
assets are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. 
Donated assets are recorded at nil value. 

1.6.1 Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets relate to purchased software, software 
licences and certain system development costs. 

1.6.2 Tangible non-current assets

Tangible assets include items such as IT hardware and 
fixtures and fittings.

1.6.3 Estimated useful economic lives of  

non-current assets

The following estimated useful economic lives are used 
in the calculation of depreciation.

Tangible assets 
Fixtures and fittings:  5 years 
IT hardware:   5 years

Intangible assets 
IT software:  5 years 
IT development costs: 5 years

Intangible assets within the  
12.1.3 ERP service delivery 
platform:    5 years

Intangible assets within the  
12.0.6 ERP and grants service 
delivery platform:   7 years

1.6.4 Impairment review

Depreciation methods, estimated useful economic lives 
and residual values of non-current assets are reviewed 
at least at each balance sheet date. Any resultant 
impairment charges are charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and the carrying value of the 
relevant non-current asset is reduced to the recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the 
amount to be recovered through use or sale.

1.7 Financial instruments

The nature of the Company’s activities and the method 
of its funding mean that the Company is not exposed 
to the degree of financial risk faced by non-public 
sector entities. Moreover, financial instruments play 
a much more limited role in creating or changing risk 
than would be typical of the listed companies to which 
IAS 32, 39 and IFRS 7 mainly apply. The Company has 
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and 
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-
day operational activities and are not held to change the 
risks facing the Company in undertaking its activities.

Assets and liabilities have been accounted for at historic 
cost, which due to their nature, is not materially different 
from Fair Value. 



F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

43R I S I N G  T O  T H E  C H A L L E N G E

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

1.8 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current 
and deferred tax. Current corporation tax is the 
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the 
year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at 
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to the tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

1.9 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing 
differences that have originated but not reversed at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent that it can be regarded as more likely than 
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which 
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences 
can be deducted.

1.10 Employee benefit costs

The main pension scheme used by employees of the 
Company is the Research Councils Pension Scheme 
(RCPS), which is a defined benefit government pension 
scheme. The Company’s contributions to RCPS are 
defined contributions charged to the Income Statement 
in accordance with actuarial recommendations. The 
Company does not face actuarial gains or losses. 
Liabilities for the payment of future benefits are a charge 
on RCPS and are consequently not included in these 
financial statements.

1.11 VAT

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable. 
The Company has to comply with a limited partial 
recovery formula for VAT purposes. All expenditure and 
fixed asset purchases are shown inclusive of VAT where 
applicable. Residual input tax is therefore reclaimable 
by the application of the partial recovery formula and is 
taken as negative expenditure.

1.12 Operating leases

Amounts paid under the terms of operating leases are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

1.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit 
will be required to settle the obligation, and where the 
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

2. Revenue, Cost of Sales, Administrative Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration

2. Revenue, Cost of Sales, Administrative Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration
2014/15 2013/14

2.1 Revenue

Rendering of services
£’000 £’000

Arts and Humanities Research Council 153 203

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 308 950

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 46,783 49,361

Economic and Social Research Council 104 241

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 507 480

Higher Education Funding Council for England 51 16

Medical Research Council 1,628 1,174

Natural Environment Research Council 542 500

Science and Technology Facilities Council 479 608

Innovate UK (formerly Technology Strategy Board) 518 604

Revenue from related parties  51,073 54,137

 

Other Non-Departmental Public Bodies 109 147

Other Central Government Bodies 2,106 2,116

Other income 398 931

Total revenue 2014/15 53,686 57,331

2.2 Cost of sales

The cost of sales relating to the above revenue is as follows:

2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Cost of sales of continuing activities 49,597 58,038

2.3 Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses within the Statement of Comprehensive Income are as follows:

2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Payroll costs 3,764 5,376

Administrative costs 7,698 2,943

External audit 66 64

Total administrative expenses 11,528 8,383

2.4 Auditor’s remuneration

The analysis of external auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit  
of the Company’s annual accounts

66 64

Total external audit fees 66 64
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3. Employees and Directors
4. Reporting of Civil Service and Other Compensation Schemes – Exit Packages

3. Employees and Directors
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Wages and salaries 21,391 24,317

Social security costs 1,587 1,945

Other pension costs 4,997 5,825

Restructuring costs 3,547 183

31,552 32,270

The employees’ and directors’ payroll costs are included within the cost of sales and administrative expenses 
disclosed in Note 2.

Directors’ remuneration is stated in the Remuneration Report.

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:

2014/15 2013/14

Average number of employees 738 867

Average number of full time equivalents employees 698 825

Included in the figures above are 44 employees on fixed term contracts with a combined salary of £1,106k.

4. Reporting of Civil Service and Other Compensation Schemes – Exit Packages

Exit Packages cost band

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies 

Number of  
Other departures 

agreed

Total Number of 
exit packages by 

cost band

<£10,000 0 38 38

£10,000 - £25,000 0 75 75

£25,000 - £50,000 0 36 36

£50,000 - £100,000 0 10 10

£100,000 - £150,000 0 1 1

£150,000 - £200,000 0 0 0

Total number of exit packages by type 0 160 160

Total resource cost (£’000) 0 3,547 3,547

5. Net Finance Income  
6. Loss before Income Tax 

7. Income Tax

5. Net Finance Income
2014/15 

£’000
2013/15 

£’000

Finance income:

Bank interest receivable 8 28

6. Loss before Income Tax
The loss before income tax is stated after charging:

2014/15 
£’000

2013/15 
£’000

Depreciation – tangible assets 1,479 1,625

Amortisation – intangible assets 8,165 7,489

External auditors’ remuneration 66 64

7. Income Tax
There is corporation tax of £9k that is recognised in these accounts (2013/14 £0k) but there is no deferred tax in these 
financial statements relating to the 12 month period ended 31 Mar 2015.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised as the Company is not likely to incur profits in the near future against which 
such assets may be offset.
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8. Non-current Assets

8. Assets

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software 
and licences 

£’000

COST

At 1 April 2014 59,195

Additions 112

At 31 March 2015 59,307

 

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2014 31,265

Amortisation for year 8,165

 

At 31 March 2015 39,430

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2015 19,877

COST

At 1 April 2013 53,565

Additions 5,630

At 31 March 2014 59,195

 

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2013 23,776

Amortisation for year 7,489

At 31 March 2014 31,265

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2014 27,930

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 

EQUIPMENT

Plant and 
machinery 

£’000

COST

At 1 April 2014 9,109

Additions 661

At 31 March 2015 9,770

 

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2014 5,217

Charge for year 1,479

 

At 31 March 2015 6,696

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2015 3,074

COST

At 1 April 2013 7,482

Additions 1,627

At 31 March 2014 9,109

 

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2013 3,592

Charge for year 1,625

At 31 March 2014 5,217

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2014 3,892

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of the non-current assets were reviewed by the Company as at 31 
March 2015. All were thought to be appropriate and no adjustments or impairments necessary.

The Company currently delivers services to the Research Councils using the original Oracle 12.0.6 platform and to BIS 
and other clients using the newer 12.1.3 platform. 

As at 31 March 2015, the net book value of the 12.0.6 development included within intangible assets was £14.8m and its 
useful economic life (UEL) was estimated to end in October 2017. 

As at 31 March 2015, the net book value of the 12.1.3 development included within intangible assets was £3.9m and its 
UEL was estimated to end in October 2018.

9. Trade and Other Receivables
10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

9. Trade and Other Receivables
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Current

Trade receivables and accrued income due from related parties 2,150 5,472

Other Central Government Bodies  429 967

Public Corporations and Trading Funds  130 62

External to Government  

Other trade receivables 292 2,291

Prepayments and other accrued income 1,557 1,580

 

4,558 10,372

Non Current

Trade receivables due from related parties 38 51

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Current cash and equivalents 4,101 3,134

4,101 3,134

Cash comprises cash at bank.
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11. Trade and Other Payables
12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

11. Trade and Other Payables
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Current

Trade payables due to related parties 504 683

Other Central Government Bodies 557 0

Public Corporations and Trading Funds 112 1,275

Deferred Income received from related parties 4,261 5,753

  

External to Government:

Other trade payables 294 1,161

Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 2,041 3,798

 

7,769 12,670

Non Current

Trade payables due to related parties 76 75

Deferred Income received from related parties  3,483 5,274

 

3,559 5,349

12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Provision for costs arising from the cancellation of contracts 400 0

400 0

The above provision relates mainly to legal costs regarding a potential claim arising from the cancellation of a contract. 
While the counterparty has suggested a higher amount may be due, the Company accepts neither the quantum nor any 
liability in this particular matter. The final amount of these is sensitive to several factors including the timing and extent of 
further discussions, and the provision recognised represents the Company’s best estimate of all marginal costs obligated 
by the decision to cancel.

13. Leasing Agreements 
14. Financial Instruments and Capital Risk Management

13. Leasing Agreements
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Within one year 270 393

Between one and five years 558 828

In more than five years 0 0

 

828 1,221

14. Financial Instruments and Capital Risk Management

Risk management is carried out by the Executive Management Team (EMT) under the direction of the Board. The 
Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Credit risk

The Company has credit risk in the form of receivables from its customer companies. These companies are all in the 
public sector, have an appropriate credit history and have undertaken to pay on agreed terms.

Liquidity risk

The Company evaluates and follows continuously the amount of liquid funds needed for business operations in order to 
secure the funding needed for business activities. 

Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the operating income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Fair value

Assets and liabilities have been accounted for at historic cost, which due to their nature is not materially different from 
Fair Value. 
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15. Called Up Share Capital

15. Called Up Share Capital

Ownership of the Company

As at 31 March 2015, the shareholders of the Company were as below.

• The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) held one Government Department (GD) Share carrying 51% of 
the votes controlling the company.

• The seven UK Research Councils, Innovate UK (formerly the Technology Strategy Board, TSB) and the Higher Education 
Funding Council for England (HEFCE) each held one Non-Government Department (NGD) Share, together carrying 49% 
of the votes. 

• The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills held four Deferred Shares. 

• The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills also held 62,016,358 Non-Voting Shares. Holders of Non-Voting 
Shares are entitled to 100 per cent of the profits of the Company. The holders of GD, NGD and Deferred Shares have no 
right to dividends or to otherwise participate in the profits of the Company.

On 1 October 2013, the one Employee Trust Share was re-designated as 4 Deferred Shares of nominal value £1 each and 
transferred from UK SBS Employee Engagement Company Limited to BIS. The Employee Trust share represented 5% of the 
votes, which transferred to the holders of the NGD shares (increasing their share from 44% to 49%) when the Employee Trust 
share was re-designated.

Share Capital  
Allotted, issued and fully paid:

2015 2014

Number Class Nominal £ £

Value

1 Government Dept £1 1 1

9 Non Government Dept £1 9 9

4 Deferred £1 4 0

62,016,358 Non-Voting £1 62,016,358 62,016,358

62,016,372 62,016,372

16. Employee Benefit Obligations

16. Employee Benefit Obligations

Pension plans

The Research Councils Pension Scheme (RCPS) is in all respects ‘by-analogy’ with the Principal Civil Service Pension 
Scheme, except that the employer’s contribution is determined separately on the recommendation of the Government 
Actuary Department (GAD). It is a notionally funded, contributory, defined benefit scheme, and is administered by the 
Research Councils’ Joint Superannuation Services. The Scheme’s accounts are prepared by the Biotechnology and 
Biological Sciences Research Council (BBSRC) on behalf of the Chief Executive of BBSRC as Accounting Officer for RCPS.

The employer’s contribution for those Company employees who participate in RCPS is agreed by RCPS Board of 
Management on the recommendation of the GAD and in 2014-2015 was set at 26% of pensionable pay. 

The RCPS is a defined benefit scheme, which is a multi-employed defined benefit scheme of which UK SBS is unable to 
identify its share of the assets and liabilities. The RCPS prepares separates accounts and the contributions for 2014/15 
were £5.0m (2013/14 restated £5.8m).

Some employees have retained alternative pension arrangements that originated with the research council from which 
they transferred. The Medical Research Council Pension scheme is a defined benefit scheme and the United Kingdom 
Atomic Energy Authority Scheme is a final salary scheme. For 2014-2015 the employer’s contribution for these employees 
ranged between 12.9% and 26.0%. UK SBS also offers a stakeholder pension which attracts age-related employer 
contributions between 3% and 12.5%. Additionally, any level of optional employee contributions is matched by a further 
employer contribution up to maximum of 3% of pensionable salary.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that 
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual 
requires that “the period between formal actuarial valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in 
intervening years”.

The last formal actuarial valuation undertaken for RCPS as at 31 March 2006 was completed in 2008-09. Consequently, a 
formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2010 was initiated but was not expected to be completed at 31 March 2015. 

Subsequently however, formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public service pension schemes have been suspended by 
HM Treasury on value for money grounds, while consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions and 
while future scheme terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service pension provision. The primary purpose 
of the formal actuarial valuations is to set employer and employee contribution rates, and these are currently being 
determined under the new scheme design.
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17. Related Parties
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Related Parties
Revenue from related parties is detailed in Note 2. 

Expenditure with related parties during the year was as follows
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Arts & Humanities Research Council 46  0

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 867 1,007

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 282 73

Economic and Social Research Council 0 0

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 178 359

Higher Education Funding Council for England 0 0 

Medical Research Council 30 61

Natural Environment Research Council 42 0

Science and Technology Facilities Council 69 67

Innovate UK (formerly Technology Strategy Board) 24 0 

1,538 1,567

Expenditure with related parties is for various items, the biggest being rent and building services, 
printing services and staff secondments.

Trade receivables and accrued income balances with related parties: 

Due within 1 year:
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Arts & Humanities Research Council 84  49

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 57 596

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 39 3,398

Economic and Social Research Council 56 29

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 163 158

Higher Education Funding Council for England 0 0 

Medical Research Council 1,183 571

Natural Environment Research Council 155 159

Science and Technology Facilities Council 194 178

Innovate UK (formerly Technology Strategy Board) 219 334 

2,150 5,472

Due over 1 year:

Research Council Pension Scheme 38 51

Trade payables and accruals: 2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Arts & Humanities Research Council 46  0

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 328 576

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 0 0

Economic and Social Research Council 0 0

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 0 0

Higher Education Funding Council for England 0 0 

Medical Research Council 0 107

Natural Environment Research Council 0 0

Science and Technology Facilities Council 54 0

Innovate UK (formerly Technology Strategy Board) 0 0 

428 683

Due over 1 year:

Research Council Pension Scheme 76 75

18. Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax to Cash Generated from Operations 
19. Interests in Subsidiaries

Related Party Disclosures

The Company is a separate legal entity, wholly-owned by several customers, providing services to multiple customers. 
Transactions with related parties take place on an arm’s-length basis. The Company seeks to set service charges such 
that it breaks even before depreciation, amortisation and the release of deferred income that covers certain elements of 
depreciation. 

The Company is deemed to be a state-controlled entity because the only shareholders are publicly-owned entities. 

On 6 March 2014, the ownership and governance of the Company changed as detailed in Note 15. 

The shareholders at 31 March 2015 are the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS), the seven UK Research 
Councils, Innovate UK (formerly the Technology Strategy Board, TSB) and the Higher Education Funding Council for 
England (HEFCE).

The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The related party tables have details only of balances and transactions with shareholders and the RCPS Pension 
Scheme. Tim Knighton, a Non-Executive Director, is Chief Operating Officer of the Intellectual Property Office, to which 
UK SBS sold services to the value of £376k during 2014/15 (£431k in 2013/14) that are not disclosed in the above related 
party tables, he resigned from the Intellectual Property Office on the 06 June 2014. Jonathan Preece (ex-CEO) is a Vice 
President of the Institute of Customer Service, from which UK SBS bought services to the value of £50k during 2014/15 
(£5k in 2013/14) that are not disclosed in the above related party tables.

18. Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax to Cash Generated from Operations
2014/15 

£’000
2013/14 

£’000

Total loss for the year (7,431) (9,062)

Depreciation and amortisation charges 9,644 9,114 

Impairment of intangible asset 0 0

Finance income (8) (28)

2,205 24 

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 5,827 (3,204)

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (6,691) 4,193 

Cash generated from operations 1,341 1,013

19. Interests in Subsidiaries
During 2013/14 the Company purchased a subsidiary in order to secure a company name and it later exchanged 
names with the subsidiary. Therefore the Company has the following non-trading subsidiary, which has no income or 
expenditure. 
Name: RCUK Shared Services Centre Ltd 
Registered number: 8317077, registered in England and Wales



F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

R I S I N G  T O  T H E  C H A L L E N G E

20. Special Payments 
21. Events after the Reporting Period

20. Special Payments 
Special payments include extra-contractual payments to third parties and compensation payments.

2014/15 
£’000

2013/14 
£’000

Total amount 787 105

Total number of cases 7 2

This figure includes a special payment of £500,000 as a result of a UK SBS procurement exercise.

21. Events after the Reporting Period
The Executive Board of BIS approved a recommendation in June 2015 that BIS assumes a closer relationship with 
UK SBS, whilst preparing to transfer UK SBS services to other government organisations or external providers over the 
next three years. To facilitate this there will be changes to the governance of the Company during 2015/16 to bring the 
company under more direct BIS control.



North Star House  
North Star Avenue  
Swindon Wiltshire SN2 1FF  
www.uksbs.co.uk

Concept House  
Cardiff Road Newport  
South Wales NP10 8QQ 
www.uksbs.co.uk

Queensway House  
West Precinct Billingham 
Stockton-on-Tees TS23 2NF 
www.uksbs.co.uk

UK Shared Business Services Ltd (UK SBS) 
Registered in England and Wales as a limited company. Company Number 6330639.  
Registered Office: North Star House, North Star Avenue,  Swindon Wiltshire SN2 1FF
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